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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief:- (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
report misleading,; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
BEFBEEEBR AR

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Aurum
Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”), It gives me
great pleasure to report to the shareholders the financial
performance for the year ended 31 December 2009.

The key business segments of the Group are trading of
computer equipment and related accessories and provision
of custom-made solutions. For the financial year 2009,
the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
HK$36,941,000, representing almost twice the revenue
of approximately HK$18,582,000 for the year ended 31
December 2008. The steady increase in turnover was mainly
contributed by its trading business. Besides, the Group
continues to develop its custom-made solutions business in
order to provide high-quality of products and services to our
customers.

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of the entire
interest in a wholly owned subsidiary, Besto Investment
Limited together with its subsidiaries. The transaction
was completed and resulted in a gain of approximately
HK$12,021,000 to the Group. The subsidiaries disposed
of were originally engaged in the information localisation
business which has not been operative for more than two
years. This disposal means that, the Group has had the
distressed business disposed of, and has made a clean
break against any potential liabilities arising from the bank
loans therein. The performance of the Group improved both
financially and operationally after the disposal.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The Board is committed to review its overall strategy so
as to improve the current business profile, and also to
seek more business opportunities in order to diversify the
customer base and to provide additional and sufficient cash
flow for the Group. As a result of the Group’s initiatives,
trading in the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
could be resumed hopefully in the near future.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere appreciation to our valued
shareholders, business associates and our team for their
encouraging support to the Group in the past year.

Cheung Yu Ping
Chairman

22 March 2010
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Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
BEFBEEEBR AR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group is principally
engaged in trading of computer equipment and related
computerized accessories, and provision of custom-
made solutions. For the year ended 31 December 2009,
the trading of computer equipment, computerized related
accessories had contributed a turnover and gross profit
of approximately HK$36,803,000 and HK$6,515,000
respectively, which has become an important business
segment of the Group with stable and strong cash flow.
During the year of 2009, the Group has resumed its business
in custom-made solutions, which is currently engaged in
provision of software on intranet security. The Group has
been continuously expanding in the range of products and
different market segments so as to provide high quality
products and services to our customers. It is expected
that the Group will continue to grow its business both in
the provision of custom-made solutions and the trading of
computer equipment and related computerized accessories
steadily.

The Group disposed of its entire interest in the wholly
owned subsidiary, Besto Investment Limited together
with its subsidiaries in March 2009 and realised a gain on
disposal of approximately HK$12,021,000. The subsidiaries
disposed of were engaged in the information localisation
business and had been dormant for more than two years. As
a result of this disposal, the Group has had the distressed
business disposed of, and has made a clean break against
any potential liabilities arising from the bank loans therein.
The performance of the Group, financially as well as
operationally, has been improved significantly.

At the same time, the Group has undertaken a strategic
review on its operations in order to improve the current
business profile, and is committed to seeking all possibilities
to provide additional and sufficient cash flow for the
Group. As a result of the Group’s initiatives, trading of the
Company’s shares could be resumed hopefully in the near
future.

Annual Report 2009

EHoE

REBEHRN AEBEZTZEXEEESHR
B EMCBER T - A RREETRER
FR-REEZ ??hiJr A=+—
HEtFE EEERIZE BIEEH
Pt 2 R H R E %%E&%ﬂ W Ip=ES)
36,803,000/ 7T 126,515,000 70 EE
W§$E.ﬁ$g ﬁﬁgﬁ«bé{imuZEx
X¥B -RZZEZENFE AEEEMER
TE1qu§?ﬁ¢/j&E%2%j{& B Al 7 E m
KRBT AENEERELZE2HE-AE
ErEENERRANRARTR TS E
B BRREPHRELENERMRS
HW$¢I2%T%%%@5)U7%%%&E§

BEREBLRERCBER A REDER
,.ﬁ%mﬁﬂigﬁ °
AEBER-_ZETNF=ZARNLEEHELS

& [t B A 7] Besto Investment Limited 2
T Eb R B R 4912,021,00078 7T
Kam-BEHEZHBARRLEEEER
b BEEBRERCFEBMF o 1t
HEEEE KEI?EFﬂaﬁﬁi&%ﬁ i
TREN T AZEBR CRITERME
EZEH/E'E%T,\‘J$%IZE7H%&%
ERBMGPENRE-

R AREEHXFETRENT B
CLREXBES UHANSKMBEAT
TE RASREREBIINRFERRER
B RREAKE 2 TEER - ARFIKRD
AEETAKKREEE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overall Review

For the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$36,941,000, representing an increase
of approximately 98.8% as compared with approximately
HK$18,582,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008. The
gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009 was approximately HK$6,534,000, representing
an increase of 60.4% as compared with approximately
HK$4,073,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008. The
large increment in turnover and gross profit were mainly
contributed by the trading of computerised smart sockets.

As a result of the increase in turnover and decrease in
administrative expenses, loss from continuing operations
for the year ended 31 December 2009 was approximately
HK$151,000, representing a decrease of 98% as compared
with approximately HK$7,695,000 for the year ended 31
December 2008. Profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009
was approximately HK$11,870,000, whereas a loss of
approximately HK$9,711,000 was recorded for the year
ended 31 December 2008. Profit for the current year was
mainly contributed by the gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$12,021,000.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$1,018,000 (2008: HK$5,073,000),
and loans from the controlling shareholder with a carrying
value of HK$7,658,000, which are unsecured, interest
free and not repayable before 31 August 2013. As at 31
December 2008, the Group had loans from the controlling
shareholder and a former shareholder with carrying values
of HK$12,210,000 and HK$1,146,000 respectively. The loan
from a former shareholder was entirely waived by the former
shareholder on 31 March 2009. Furthermore, the existing
controlling shareholder has undertaken to provide continuing
financial support to the Group whenever it is necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2009, total assets of the Group were
approximately HK$11,405,000, (2008: HK$34,939,000)
whereas the total liabilities were approximately
HK$11,580,000 (2008: HK$49,803,000). The gearing ratio of
the Group, calculated as total liabilities over total assets, has
been substantially reduced to 101.5% (2008: 142.5%) and
the current ratio, calculated as current assets over current
liabilities, has been greatly improved to 2.8 (2008: 0.8). The
Directors will continue to take measures to further improve
the liquidity and gearing position of the Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Directors consider that the Group has no material
foreign exchange exposure.

Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant
Investment of the Group

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group
disposed of its entire interest in the information localisation
business which has not been operated for more than two
years. Further details are set out in the circular dated 25
March 2009. Save as disclosed above, the Group did not
have any material acquisition, disposal and significant
investment.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2009, the Group did not have any
substantial pledge of assets and contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2009.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2009, the Group employed 10 staff
(2008: 8). The staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
was approximately HK$3,431,000 for the year under review
(2008: HK$3,671,000). Remuneration is determined by
reference to market terms and the performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee.

The Group provides benefits in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations including the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme of Hong Kong.
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Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining corporate
governance of high standards and quality procedures.
The Company has put in place governance practices with
emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and quality of
disclosure, transparency and accountability to shareholders
for the sake of maximising returns to shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2009 except for
the deviations from code provisions A.2.1 which is explained
in the following relevant paragraph. Below are the major
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
with specific reference to the Code.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company
had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company also had made
specific enquiry of all directors and the Company was not
aware of any non-compliance with the required standard
of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling of
the Company, overseeing as well as the supervision of its
business, approval of strategic plans and monitoring the
Company’s performance. The Board delegates the day-
to- day operations to the executive directors and senior
management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2009, the board
of Directors (the “Board”) consisted of three independent
non-executive Directors that was more than one-third of the
Board. As at 31 December 2009, the Board comprised six
Directors, of which three were executive Directors namely
Mr. Cheung Yu Ping, Mr. Chan Chi Chiu, Henry and Mr.
Lee Ah Sang; and three were independent non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Jin Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho and Mr.
Chan Wai Fat. There is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship amongst the Directors.

The Board has the necessary skills and experience
appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in the
best interests of the Company and that the current board
size is adequate for its present operations. Each of the
Directors keeps abreast of his responsibilities as a Director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad hoc
basis to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation
and financial performance of the Group. There were six
board meetings held during the year 2009.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held
during the year:

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
RFEVSRE (LEFRITHAEH)

Mr. Chan Chi Chiu, Henry (Vice Chairman)

PREMEE (FIFE)

Mr. Lee Ah Sang

FERERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Jin Guangjun
TEABRE

Mr. Law Kin Ho
BEZKAE

Mr. Chan Wai Fat
PR 18 % k&

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping is the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Pursuant to A.2.1 of the Code,
The roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Board considers that vesting the roles of both
chairman and chief executive officer in the same person
will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company. The
Board also believes that the current structure provides the
Company with strong and consistent leadership and allows
for effective and efficient planning and implementation of
business decisions and strategies. It is in the best interest
of the Group to maintain the current practice for continuous
efficient operations and development of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

INDEPENDENCE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive Directors
should be appointed for specific terms, subject to
re-election.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2009, Mr.
Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth and Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, the two
independent non-executive Directors, were not appointed for
a specific term but are subject to retirement and re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s articles of association.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a
proper corporate governance structure of the Company. It
is primarily responsible for setting directions, formulating
strategies, monitoring performance and managing the risks
of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently three
subcommittees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Audit committee
and Remuneration committee perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference and
assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the senior
management. Nomination committee assists the Board in
nominating candidates for directorship, reviewing the size
and composition of the Board and making recommendation
to the Board on appointment of directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a
specific written terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s policy
and structure for remuneration of Directors and senior
management and determining the specific remuneration
packages of directors and senior management of the
Company.
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As at 31 December 2009, the Remuneration Committee
comprises four members with a majority of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr,
Jin Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho, Mr. Chan Wai Fat and
Mr. Cheung Yu Ping. The Committee is chaired by an
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Jin Guangjun.

The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at least
once a year. One meeting was held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2009. The attendance of each member
is set out as follows:

Attendance of individual members at Remuneration
Committee meeting held during the year:

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BAFITEES

Mr. Jin Guangjun (Chairman)
CEELE (FE)

Mr. Law Kin Ho

BiERTE

Mr. Chan Wai Fat

PRIZFE K&

Executive Director

HITES

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping
RF A

Annual Report 2009
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Directors is decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the market
terms, individual experiences, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors
by the Company and its subsidiaries in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The amounts paid to each Director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set out
in Note 13 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2009, the Nomination Committee
comprised four members with a majority of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Jin Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho, Mr. Chan Wai Fat and
Mr. Cheung Yu Ping. The Committee is chaired by an
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Jin Guangjun.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating
potential candidates for directorship, reviewing the
nomination of directors and making recommendations to the
Board on such appointments.

The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least
once a year for the review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board. In addition, the Nomination
Committee also meets as it is required to consider
nomination related matters. One meeting was held during
the financial year. The attendance of each member is set out
as follows:
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Attendance of individual members at Nomination Committee
meeting held during the year:

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BAFITEES

Mr. Jin Guangjun (Chairman)
CEELE (F/E)

Mr. Law Kin Ho

BRERTE

Mr. Chan Wai Fat

PRIZFE K&

Executive Director

BITES

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping
RF A

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Under its terms of reference which are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the Code, the Audit Committee
is set up based on the guidelines recommended by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants to
evaluate the overall effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management frameworks, to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and other
financial reporting matters and ensure the completeness,
accuracy and fairness of the financial statements, to monitor
compliance with statutory and listing requirements and to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors.

Annual Report 2009
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The Audit Committee comprised three members throughout
the year ended 31 December 2009. At least one member
has an appropriate professional qualification or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Audit
Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual reports
before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee
focuses not only on the impact of the changes in accounting
policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the legal
requirements in the review of the Company’s quarterly,
interim and annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditors, executive
Directors and senior executives are invited to attend the
meetings, if required. Each member of the Audit Committee
members had unrestricted access to the Group’s external
auditors and the Management.

The Audit Committee met five times during the year and the
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BAFITEES

Mr. Jin Guangjun (Chairman)
CEELE (F/E)

Mr. Law Kin Ho

BERTE

Mr. Chan Wai Fat
PRIZFE K &E
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company reviews the appointment of an external auditor
on an annual basis including a review of the audit scope and
approval of the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable
to the Company’s external auditor for the annual audit
amounted to HK$420,000 and a fee of HK$70,000 has been
paid for non-audit related activities.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems. The internal control system includes
safeguard of the interest of shareholders and the Group’s
assets.

During the year, the Board had conducted a review of the
system of internal control to ensure the effectiveness and
adequacy of the system. The Board will continue to carry out
regular review on the internal control system. The Group will
constantly improve and strengthen its corporate control with
reference to changes in the operating environment in order
to enhance its corporate governance and safeguard the
interests of its shareholders.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS POLICY

During the year, related party transactions are periodically
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Annual Report 2009
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company uses two-way communication channels to
account to shareholders and investors for the performance
of the Company. All the shareholders have received not
less than 20 clear business days’ notice of annual general
meeting at which Directors are available to answer questions
on the business. Extensive information about the Group’s
activities is provided in its annual report, interim report
and quarterly reports which are sent to shareholders and
investors. The Company’s announcements, press releases
and publications are published and are also available
on the GEM website and on the Company’s website at
www.aurumpacific.com.hk.

In order to provide effective disclosure to shareholders and
investors and to ensure they all receive equal access to the
same information at the same time, information considered
to be of a price sensitive nature is released by way of formal
public announcement as required by the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping (5 F ¥), aged 52, has been
appointed as an executive Director, the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company with effect from
14 July 2008. Mr. Cheung has also been appointed as
authorised representative and compliance officer of the
Company with effect from 17 March 2010. He has extensive
experience in consultancy business of energy, information
technology related projects and property investment in the
PRC. He graduated at Harbin Institute of Technology, the
PRC with a degree in construction engineering. Mr. Cheung
has been operating his consultant business with offices
both in Shenzhen and Hong Kong. Prior to starting his own
business, he was a public servant and vated as a senior
engineer in the PRC from 1982 to 2000, where extensive
connections and experience in the industry were developed.
Currently, he is also an adjunct professor in the Shenzhen
Graduate School of Harbin Institute of Technology.

Mr. Lee Ah Sang (Z3E4 ) , aged 46, has been appointed
as an executive Director of the Company with effect from
2 October 2008. He is an experienced financial market
practitioner who has worked in the financial field for
more than 20 years. Mr. Lee was a key employee with
the securities arm of one of the largest Chinese banks in
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee joined the investment arena before
the unification of the four stock exchanges, and is now
the general manager and an executive director of a local
securities company. Mr. Lee is a licensed Responsible Officer
with Securities and Futures Commission and he is also a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Securities.

Annual Report 2009
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PROFILES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (ZF&E#) , aged 41, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 8 March 2010. Mr. Chi has over
18 years of experience in accounting and financial control.
He holds a Bachelor of Accountancy Degree from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom, an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chi is also
an independent non-executive director of ZMAY Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8085) and an executive director of
Hua Yi Copper Holdings Limited (stock code: 559). Mr. Chi
was an executive director of Golden Resorts Group Limited
(stock code: 1031) from 8 June 2005 to 29 March 2007,
and an executive director and the Chairman of Hong Kong
Health Check and Laboratory Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 397) from 18 March 2003 to 13 March 2007.

Mr. Chan Wai Fat (FR{£3 ) , aged 42, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 14 July 2008. Mr. Chan is currently a Senior
Vice President of a securities house in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan
holds a bachelor degree of commerce from The University
of Western Australia and a master degree of business
administration from Deakin University, Australia. He has
years of experience in compliance, accounting and financial
management in securities industry and has worked for
international accounting firms and listed company in Hong
Kong. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a Certified Practising Accountant of
CPA Australia.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PROFILES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (£ X 3 ), aged 43, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 17 March 2010. Mr. Chui has
over 15 years’ experiences in accounting and auditing fields.
Mr. Chui is currently an executive director of China Energy
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 228) and also
an executive director of ZMAY Holdings Limited (stock code:
8085).

Annual Report 2009
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors hereby present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended from 22 March 2007 and will
remain suspended until further notice.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
while the Group is principally engaged in trading of computer
equipment and related computerized accessories, and
provision of custom-made solutions during the year.

The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set
out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the financial year under review is as
follows:
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Percentage of
the Group’s total

mEREEAEZAES L
Sales Purchases
HE HEE
The largest customer ISYNEYS 97.7%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFP &G 100%
The largest supplier &AM ERE 99.6%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR S 5T 100%

During the year ended 31 December 2009, none of the
Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (who to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in these major customers and suppliers.

KBE-ETNE+-A=+—AILF
BOEE BEIBRASEEER O
EARATEBITRASKRA b2 AR TR
KBRS EERS REEE TR
(EAHE 3 -

—TEAFFR

23



o

24

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
BEFBEEEBR AR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group’s and
the Company’s affairs for the year ended 31 December 2009
are set out in the financial statements on pages 39 to 115.

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2009, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 16 on the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the financial year are set out in Note 22 on
the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The changes of Directors during the financial year and up
to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
RFEVRE (L/EHRTEAES)

Mr. Lee Ah Sang

FHRERE

Mr. Chan Chi Chiu, Henry (Vice Chairman)

REBEE (FFE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Chan Wai Fat
R1E % K&

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth
TEERAE

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau
ENIREE

Mr. Law Kin Ho
‘A

Mr. Jin Guangjun
TEBRAE

In accordance with article 108 (A) of the Company’s articles
of association, one-third of the Directors shall retire at each
annual general meeting from office by rotation. Further,
according to article 112 of the articles of association of the
Company, any director appointed by the Directors to fill a
casual vacancy in the Company under that article shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting
and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting.

BEE

REAMBFEREEAREAMZES
gEmT

(resigned on 17 March 2010)
(R=ZE—ZTF=ZA+EHET)

(appointed on 8 March 2010)
(RZZE—ZEF=-AN\BEZT)
(appointed on 17 March 2010)
(R=ZE—ZTF=A+tHEZT)
(resigned on 8 March 2010)
(R=ZE—ZF=AN\HHHET)
(resigned on 17 March 2010)
(R=FB—2F=A+LARE)

BEARRNF ZHABEZRMAAE108(A)
- =2 —EFARBERREAF K
THESRE I BEARRZEZE
RARE 12 BEESTSRIBEZMEZE
TUREFAQABRRERZIMES 2
THEETERRAFAE AL BR
BHEEERNE EERET-
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Accordingly, in accordance with articles 108(A) and 112 of
the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth, Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, Mr. Cheung Yu Ping and Mr.
Chan Wai Fat will retire from the Board at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 20 to 22
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS

None of the existing Directors who has entered into any
service contract with the Company and appointed for a fixed
term except that Mr. Chan Wai Fat, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of one year
commencing from 14 July 2009, unless terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party on the other.

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association and
the GEM Listing Rules.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
which is not determinable by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

Annual Report 2009
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(iii) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

() Long positions in the shares of the Company

e
eHE
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EERFETHRAERRAD - 1HE
BRORES2EER KR

RZEEZAF+_A=+—H BFK
RABEEZITHABRART RE BB
EZE(TEERBHFRAERMEXVE) 2
R HERODIESFFHEBA()VREE
FREEKRPIEXVRETRESD HME
AARRBRAM(EEREZHFLGE
RO FE R 2 Em IOk B W E ES iR
RBEBZERIORE)  H () ERIRE
BEMEEIKENE35267FENE LM
R k(iR E 8l ik TR BI%$5.46
B567TRMEARNA R RMENT

(i) REQXTIRBZHER

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Directors Nature of Interest Shares shareholding
B4 IR A2

EEpnA EmtE gy 4= EE:de
Cheung Yu Ping Interest of a controlled corporation 142,651,965 71.33%

(Note 1)

R®FF RIAEER (HiE1)

—TEAFFR
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(ii) Long positions in the shares of associated (i) AEBEZERMZHR

corporation

Approximate

Name of associated Number of percentage of

Name of Directors Corporation Nature of Interest Shares shareholding

B4R A

EEfE HELE A8 EEME RO HE Bak

Cheung Yu Ping Hong Sheng Group Limited Interest of a controlled 510 51%

corporation (Note 1)

RFF EEEESRAR REEE RS (M)

Note: Hat -

1. The interest in the Shares of Cheung Yu Ping was held through 1. RFEFNEBEEREERRAGFSR
Hong Sheng Group Limited, the entire issued share capital ZEROEZ MBEREEERAAZ
of which was beneficially and ultimately owned as to 51% by PEHEBETRADABHEFFREL
Cheung Yu Ping and as to 49% by Cai Dongmei. BEREREEHEBS51%K%49% °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND FTERRREARE#RZ 2HMEAL
OTHER PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO
DISCLOSE THEIR INTEREST

Substantial Shareholders FERRK

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December BEEEFANE R_ZTEZENF+ A
2009, the following persons, other than the Directors or chief =+—H ' TIA LT (BEEHARAEE
executive of the Company, had an interest or short position 1T A BB 4N) 7 B {5 =k A8 B % 15 + %
in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be HIREZEH NS IEFIEXVIFE2L3D
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under  &B&)1& X 78 R A A &) K B 22 BT 4% 58 2 18
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO s AR sk EE S ME AN EEF
or who were expected to be directly or indirectly interested A AL R] 15 0 T E A &= BT {a] 5k B A &)
in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share ZMKREAE FIRZ 7 (XA AHEE
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general  10%3{ A F 2 #E % ¢

meetings of any member of the Group:

Number of Approximate
Shares percentage of

Name Capacity (Note 1) shareholding
RGEE A B 1
£ ) (Brit1) Bt
Hong Sheng Group Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 142,651,965 (L) 71.33%
BEREBEERAT BB AN (Kit2)
Cai Dongmei Interest of a controlled 142,651,965 (L) 71.33%
corporation (Note 2)
3 Ry Bk (Hit2)
Simplex Technology Investment Beneficial owner (Note 3) 16,896,363 (L) 8.45%

(Hong Kong) Co. Limited (“Simplex”)
EEBRBMEREBRAR([BIR]) EBEmBEAA(KHi23)

Shanghai Jiaoda Industrial Investment  Interest of a controlled 16,896,363 (L) 8.45%
Management (Group) Limited corporation (Note 3)
(“Jiaoda Industrial Group”)

FPERXREXEREER (£E) RERE R (MiF3)
BRAR(IRAEXRER])

Shanghai Jiao Tong University Interest of a controlled 16,896,363 (L) 8.45%

corporation (Note 3)
FEXERE XY LB R (MiE3)
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Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes the entity’s interests in the Shares.

2. The interest in the Shares of Cai Dongmei was held through Hong
Sheng Group Limited, the entire issued share capital of which was
beneficially and ultimately owned as to 51% by Cheung Yu Ping and
as to 49% by Cai Dongmei.

3. The interest in the Shares are held through Simplex, the entire issued
share capital of which was beneficially owned by Jiaoda Industrial
Group. The registered capital of Jiaoda Industrial Group was owned
as to 96.735% by Shanghai Jiao Tong University and 3.265% by
Shanghai Jiaoda Enterprise Management Centre (_ E/8X Kb ¥E 18
FLy) L, an entity wholly owned by Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of other interests or short positions of any other
person (other than the Directors and chief executives and
the substantial shareholders of the Company) in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2009.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted on 25 November 2003
whereby the Directors of the Company may at their
discretion invite any employees, directors, suppliers,
customers, advisers, consultants, joint venture partners,
and any shareholders of any members of the Group or any
invested entities or any holders of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any invested entities, to take
up options to subscribe for Shares. The Scheme became
effective upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 9 January 2004.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company had granted options
at the exercise price of HK$0.45 per share and HK$0.14
per share on 17 January 2005 and 10 October 2005
respectively, all the options granted had lapsed in the past
years. As at 31 December 2009, the Company had no
outstanding options.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year under review, the Group paid office rental
under a tenancy agreement in the amount of HK$582,000
(2008: HK$407,000) to a related party, Genesis Energy
(Hong Kong) Limited. Save as disclosed, no contract of
significance to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party, in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association, or law of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

LOANS FROM A SHAREHOLDER AND
A FORMER SHAREHOLDER

Particulars of loans from a shareholder of the Group as at
31 December 2009 are set out in Note 29(c) to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five years is set out on page 116 of
this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set
out in Note 26 to the financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and management and shareholders of
the Company (within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules)
has an interest in any business which competes or may
compete with the business in which the Group is engaged.

e
2HE

=2

EERENzER

REBEFA ARERBE—DHEERZER
BEATEIFER (BB BRATIN
WAEH£582,0008 7T (ZFEZ/\F:
407,000 7T) BRI B & N KN A A
EEZHMENRAQR HEMMKBRA K
BRWBARFFI AR FRKBIEF
RNEMEBDAERZERGHNTEE
SHEREEERNERNER -

BrEERE
ARBZBHERARNFEEEEED

VEERELBER ZGXREARNRA]
ARRAERRIZLLPHIR2 HEHRMD -

RE-—BRERR—BAIKRRZER

RZZEZEAF+_A=+—HBH EBEK
SBEE 2R EZCERFBHNITG
wRMTFE29(c) °

EFEMBERE
REBNBERF 2 EEREELEARE
BMEHNANFERE116H °

BIKEHE

REB ZRIRFTEFBIRY BFREMN
26 °
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Save as disclosed below, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions, and where
applicable, the recommended best practices of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code”) throughout the year
ended 31 December 2009.

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping is the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Pursuant to A.2.1 of the Code,
The roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Board considers that vesting the roles of both
chairman and chief executive officer in the same person
will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company. The
Board also believes that the current structure provides the
Company with strong and consistent leadership and allows
for effective and efficient planning and implementation of
business decisions and strategies. It is in the best interest
of the Group to maintain the current practice for continuous
efficient operations and development of the Group. Details
of the Code adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on the page 10 to 19.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established audit committee with
written terms of reference. The primary duties of the audit
committee are to review, in draft form, the Company’s
annual report and accounts, half-year report, quarterly
report and to provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board. The audit committee is also responsible for reviewing
and supervising the financial reporting process and internal
control of the Group. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chi Chi
Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan Wai Fat and Mr. Chui Kwong Kau.
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth is the chairman of the audit
committee.
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The audit committee has reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Company and discussed
with the Board the internal controls and financial reporting
matters, including a review of the annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors a written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Board considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2009.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has complied with
the public float requirement under Rule 11.23 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions are set out in Note 29 to
the financial statements.
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AUDITOR

Shu Lun Pan Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited
(“HORWATH”) was auditor of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2008 and held office until 29 April
2009. Horwath merged its business with BDO Limited which
was appointed as auditor of the Company by the Board to fill
the casual vacancy with effect from 1 May 2009.

The financial statements have been audited by BDO
Limited, who will retire and be eligible to offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint auditor
and to fix their remuneration.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material subsequent events after the reporting
period.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yu Ping
Chairman

22 March 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B M % BLED RS

IBDO

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA)
GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BDO Limited

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2541 5041
(852) 2815 2239

Telefax:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 39
to 115, which comprise the consolidated and Company of
financial position as at 31 December 2009, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, with
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Certified Public Accountants
25th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Except for the limitation in the
scope of our work as explained in the basis for disclaimer
of opinion on the financial performance and cash flows
paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Because of the matter described in the basis for disclaimer
of opinion on the financial performance and cash flows
paragraph, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the
financial performance and cash flows of the Group.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial positions of the Group and the
Company.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ON
THE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND CASH
FLOWS

The Group disposed of its entire interest in the wholly owned
subsidiary, Besto Investment Limited, and all the subsidiaries
of the Besto Investment Limited (the “Disposal Group”) on
9 March 2009. As explained in Note 3(b)(i) to the financial
statements, due to the reconstitution of the Board during
2007 and 2008, the Group is not able to have access
to certain books and records of the Disposal Group. In
consequence we were unable to carry out audit procedures
necessary to obtain assurance regarding the net liabilities of
the Disposal Group as at 9 March 2009 (Note 25) and the
gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$12,021,000 (Note
77) included in the financial statements. There were no
other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to
obtain sufficient evidence regarding the net liabilities of the
Disposal Group as at 9 March 2009 and the gain on disposal
of subsidiaries of HK$12,021,000. Accordingly, we have not
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the financial
performance and cash flows of the Group.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE AND CASH FLOWS

Because of the significance of the above matter described in
the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph on the financial
performance and cash flows, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for audit opinion on the financial performance and cash
flows of the Group. Accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion on the financial performance and cash flows of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2009. In all other
respects, in our opinion, the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income and cash flows have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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UNQUALIFIED OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL
POSITION

In our opinion, the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December
2009 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTERS

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the
following matters:

(i)

As explained in Note 3(b)(ii) to the financial statements,
the Group recorded a loss from continuing operations
of HK$151,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009
and had net liabilities of HK$175,000 as at that date.
The financial statements have been prepared by the
directors on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends on the continuing financial support of the
controlling shareholder and the outcome of measures
as detailed in Note 3(b)(i) to the financial statements.
We consider that appropriate disclosures and estimates
have been made in the financial statements.

Because our opinion dated 11 March 2009 on the
state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2008 and of the loss and cash flows
of the Group for the year then ended was disclaimed
for scope limitations based on reasons summarised
in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section therein,
the comparative amounts shown in these financial
statements may not be comparable with the amounts
for the current year.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shiu Hong NG
Practising Certificate Number: P03752

Hong Kong, 22 March 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—TENF+_A=+—HLFE

2009 2008
—EEAE ZEIT)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
k=g FER FAT
Continuing operations BEKEER
Turnover =S 6 36,941 18,582
Cost of sales 8 6 B AR (30,407) (14,509)
Gross profit E A 6,534 4,073
Other revenue H A I 8 1,777 -
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (1,414) (835)
Administrative expenses THAX (6,003) (10,420)
Profit/(loss) from operations R (ER) 894 (7,182)
Finance costs LRI 9 (699) (366)
Profit/(loss) before income tax SEREEB 2 BRTEHHA
expense from continuing X Aa A (EiE)
operations 9 195 (7,548)
Income tax expense FriS % 2 10 (346) (147)
Loss for the year from continuing BECEERFTEEE
operations (151) (7,695)
Discontinued operations ERIEREEK
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRIHEEEBFREGEF,
discontinued operations (E518) 11 12,021 (2,016)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEBHAN(FHE) 11,870 (9,711)
Other comprehensive income Ht2EWKA
Exchange differences on translating #E/GINEK 2 EHX =5
foreign operations - (1,534)
Less: Reclassification adjustment B BLET AR 2 B IBEN
for loss included in profit 2 B E
or loss 25 3,641 -
Other comprehensive income for FEHMmEEKA
_theyear . 3,641 (1.584)_
Total comprehensive income for FEZHEW AL
the year 15,511 (11,245)
—EE A
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Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
BEFBEEEBR AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEHE WS R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—TENF+_A=+—HLFE

2009 2008
—EENAFE —ZTZENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

ok FE T FHET
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LT ALTEAESER
(E8’)
- Equity holders of the Company —ARAEDFEA 11,870 9,711)
- Minority interests —DERRER - -
11,870 (9,711)
Total comprehensive income LTFTALTEMALAEZE
attributable to: LON L &
— Equity holders of the Company —ARAEDFEA 15,511 (11,336)
- Minority interests —VEREER - 91
15,511 (11,245)
Earnings/(loss) per share from BFERCRIEEEEER
continuing and discontinued BR, (F8)
operations - basic —EK 15 HK5.94 centsi&fll  HK(4.86) centsiZ L
Loss per share from continuing FHELKLXKESERERE
operations - basic —H K 15 HK(0.08) cents® 4l  HK(3.85) centsi&
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& B3 AR R R

At 31 December 2009 R—_ZEZEHAFE+_A=+—8

2009 2008
—EEAE —ZTZTN\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K1t FHExT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER N 16 273 117
Deposit for acquisition of W B R R 23 &
subsidiary 17 - 5,370
Total non-current assets #nBKERE 213 5,487 _
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables JrE Ui BR 3R N E b i W 5K 18 10,114 11,491
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEEY 19 1,018 5,073
11,132 16,564
Assets classified as held for sale DEERELREERE - 12,888
Total current assets REBEELE 11,132 29,452
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank loan RITER 20 - -
Trade and other payables JERTBRE &ﬁmrﬁ = 21 3,429 8,679
Amount due to a shareholder JE fF B% 2R SR IE 29(b) - 97
Amount due to a former J& A< AT I SR 5B
shareholder 30 - 450
Tax payable JE A 18 493 147
(3,922) (9,373)
Liabilities directly associated with Y| RIEEHEEERRE
assets classified HEzaE
as held for sale - (27,074)
Total current liabilities REEEHAE (3,922) (36,447)
Net current assets/(liabilities) ~ AB&EE (Rf)FE 7,210  (6,995)
Total assets less current EEHRBERRABERE
liabilities 7,483 (1,508)
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Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
BEFBEEEBR AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

& B3 AR R R

At 31 December 2009 R—_ZZ A&+ _-_A=+—8H

2009 2008
—EEAE —ZTZTN\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
K1t FET FHET
Non-current liabilities RBEME
Loans from a shareholder REER 29(c) (7,658) (12,210)
Loan from a former shareholder Al IR R E X 30 - (1,146)
Net liabilities BEFE (175) (14,864)
Capital and reserves ARREEHEARGRER
attributable to equity holders & f#E
of the Company
Share capital & < 22 2,000 2,000
Reserves R (2,175) (18,340)
Equity attributable to equity ARATEREEAEGES
holders of the Company (175) (16,340)
Minority interests DB RER - 1,476
Total equity XA (175) (14,864)
On behalf of the Board EREEEW0m
s EE
Director Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
5o 35 AR 0 3R R

At 31 December 2009 R—_ZEZEHAFE+_A=+—8

2009 2008
—EENAFE —ZTZENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

k=g FER FAT

Non-current assets FRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries NP NI = 24 8 1
Current assets RBEE

Trade and other receivables JRE AT Bl TR B2 L th JRE LATER 18 6,104 15,844

Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 19 825 -
Total current assets RBEELE 6,929 15,844
Current liabilities REAE

Trade and other payables JRE <F Bl R K2 L th JRE 1F 3K 21 4,256 9,335

Amount due to shareholder JE fF B R K18 29(b) - 97
Total current liabilities REBEEEE (4,256) (9,432)
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,673 6,412
Total assets less current EERERABAERE

liabilities 2,681 6,413
Non-current liabilities EREBEME

Loans from a shareholder REEK 29(c) (7,658) (12,210)
Net liabilities BEFE (4,977) (5,797)
Capital and reserves ARAFEEFEA

attributable to equity B ERE &

holders of the Company

Share capital PR AR 22 2,000 2,000

Reserves f# 1 23 (6,977) (7,797)
Total equity DB (4,977) (5,797)
On behalf of the Board EEEZD

EZ EFE
Director Director
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Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited

BETEEERBRAR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HERRERS X

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—TENF+_A=+—HLFE

Accumu-
Share Share Capital Capital General  Exchange lated Minority
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
HE
K& RHBEE  EARE 0 EXER -REE  EXRE 6B Mt BRRER #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TEn TEn ThERL TEn TEn ThEx ThEn TEn TEn
(Note 23b))  (Note 23(b))  (Note 23b))  (Note 23(b))  (Note 25(b))
(Hiztosp)  (W#29p)  (Wiatesw)  (W@29m)  (Fizesp)
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZZENE-F-A
A1 2,000 30,224 - 15,090 2,927 (2,016) (55,539) (7,314) 1,385 (5,929)
Total comprehensive income for FE2ANAEE
the year - - - - - (1,625) @71y (11,3%) o1 (11,245)
Capital contribution by a shareholder R L EEH 2 E
in the form of interest-free loans - - 2,310 - - - - 2,310 - 2,310
Balance at 31 December 2008 RZBENE
+ZB=t+-Rz&H 2,000 30,224 2,310 15,090 2,927 (3,641) (65,250) (16,340) 1,476 (14,864)
Total comprehensive income for FEZENALE
the year - - - - - 3,641 11,870 15,511 - 15,511
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 25  HEMRBLR (H225) - - - - - - - - (1,476) (1,476)
Transfer of reserve upon disposal of ~ HBATE LA ERHERE
subsidiaries - - - - (2,927) - 2,927 - - -
Capital contribution by a shareholder R EBEFEHED
arising from changes in the terms of B4 714
the interest-free loans - - 0654 - - - - 654 - 654
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZEENE
+oB=t-B2ts 2,000 30,224 2,964 15,000 - - (50453 (175) - (175)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—TENF+_A=+—HLFE

2009 2008
—BBhE —TT)NEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aF FET FET
Operating activities RESEE
Profit/(loss) before taxation: B AR (EE)
From continuing operations REKEED 195 (7,548)
From discontinued operations BRI ERE 12,021 (2,016)
Adjustments for: T
Depreciation of property, Y BEREREITE
plant and equipment 9c 40 97
Write off of property, WEE % BRE R
plant and equipment 9c 86 178
Finance costs Bl & AR 9a 699 366
Fair value adjustment on Uk ﬁ% MEBARZ
deposit for acquisition of A AT ERE
subsidiary 9c - 630
Imputed interest income HEFEKA 8 (335) -
Waiver of loan from a former AR E R ERH R
Shareholder 8 (1,170) -
Write back of overprovision of RBAFEEXEHR
professional fees in 2 BRR R EE R
prior years (272) -
Impairment of other receivables H b WK 2R E 9c 30 -
Gain on disposal of HE B AR K=
subsidiaries 11 (12,021) -
Operating cash flows before LEESEHAI
working capital changes KEHEME (727) (8,293)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JFE W B 3R T L th 8 L R
other receivables w (1) 7,052 (6,857)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and THEE K N H At E 5 3K
other payables ) 1N (4,978) 8,979
Decrease in amounts due to fﬁﬁfﬁ$ K IR R
former directors - (14)
(Decrease)/increase in amount JE 1 % 3R 5K IE
due to a shareholder CR )/iE hn (97) 97
Decrease in amount due to JE I B AR 3R SR IE R
a former shareholder (443) (3,282)
Cash generated from/(used in) KEmB/ (FA)ES
operations 807 (9,370)
Interest paid =ENERS - (144)
Net cash generated from/ cEEEmE . (FA)
(used in) operating activities HeFH 807 (9,514)
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Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
BEFBEEEBR AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GREBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE—TENF+_A=+—HLFE

46

2009 2008
—BBRE —TT)\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B aF FER FAET
Investing activities REEE
Payments to acquire property, BEDME HBER
plant and equipment B3 ENE (282) (65)
Disposal of subsidiaries, HEMB AR (M
net of cash disposed FIEERS) 25 (178) -
Net cash used in investing RETBHFAREFHE
activities (460) (65)
Financing activities il & 5E B
Repayment of loans to EEREER
a shareholder (5,000) -
Loan obtained from REBREZER
a shareholder 420 14,144
Net cash (used in)/generated mMEES (FTA) Fig
from financing activities REFHE (4,580) 14,144
Net (decrease)/increase incash BHERBELSZEY
and cash equivalents (RA) /g inFEE (4,233) 4,565
Cash and cash equivalents at REANzBEERREEEY
beginning of year 5,251 675
Effect of foreign exchange NEEEREFH o FE
rate changes - 11
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZEERREEEY
end of year 1,018 5,251
Analysis of the balances of cash BEE&RBESEEWEHR DN
and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand RITFERERFERS 1,018 5,073
Cash at bank and in hand AV ARBIELEEELZ
included in assets classified as RITEREFERS
held for sale (Note 25) (Hta25) - 178
1,018 5,251
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(BAETLIIR)
GENERAL

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) is
an exempted company with limited liability incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed (currently
suspended) on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office
is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. Its
head office and principal place of business is located at
Room 3707, 37/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Group, comprising the Company and its
subsidiaries, engages in trading of computer equipment
and related accessories, and provision of custom-made
solutions.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) The Group has adopted the following new/revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are
effective for the current accounting period.

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2008, except
for the amendment
to HKFRS 5 that is
effective for annual
periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009 relation
to the amendment to
paragraph 80 of HKAS
39

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

—REHE

BipFPBEEEERLAA ([ARFA)
RINFSHSTMK Lz ER2E
RAR - ERODEBTBBE XS
BRAR (TR EIZER (T8
FWRDEM(AREEFEEE) -~
A B2 AT R 2 ik = Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands® A Q&) 2 489 &
BREETEEXMBUNULNELTH
8 F168-200%% 1= 12 51 /0 79 FE37 18
3707F o

AEE (BREARBLEMBRR)
B M AR R BC AT A R AR AT SR 75

~
% o

RMBERVBRERER ([F
EMBHREED])

(a) AEEDHKMBTLESAEIQ
g([BESMAE)EM
KA G R LR FHI#ET
SIMERT BBV B RELER -

BEMBRE —SRN\ERH2ER
%8 MBREEAZK
CHES) #OREBHBREE

RIE55% Z B FTH 5N -
ERZZTNELA
—ARZEABZE
EHEEN

BEMBRE —TTAEEHZER
%A MBREER 2K
(B3TX) # NABBEEBE

£ 8 530% $808 7
537

—TEAFFR
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Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
BEFBEEEBR AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and 1
(Amendments)

HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2
(Amendment)

HKFRS 7
(Amendment)

HKFRS 8
HK(FRIC) - Int 9

and HKAS 39
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) -

Interpretation 13

HK(FRIC) —

Interpretation 15

Annual Report 2009

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial
Instruments and
Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

Cost of an Investment in
a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or
Associate

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Improving Disclosures
about Financial
Instruments

Operating Segments

Embedded derivatives

Customer Loyalty
Programmes

Agreements for the
Construction of Real
Estate

2.
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(a)

(&)
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(B3T)

BREHER
F035F
(B3:T)

BREHER
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(BETA)

BARBRE
EREIR R
BRGHE
BIE275%
(EETA)

BERMBERE
ER|E25:
(BETK)

BERMBERE
ERETH:
(BETK)

BERMBERE
AR 285K

B (B
BRERE
ZEg)
-RREEIR
kEEES
% B B35
(BFTK)

B (BB
mERE
ZE®) -
REF1SH

B (BRE%
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ZE®) -

REE15%

(&
)

MHEBRE 2R

EEKA

heMIARBRE
EZEME
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

HK(IFRIC) —
Interpretation 16

Hedges of a Net
Investment in a Foreign
Operation

HK(IFRIC) —
Interpretation 18

Transfers of Assets from
Customers

The adoption of the above new/revised HKFRSs
had no material effect on the reported results
or financial position of the Group for both the
current and prior reporting periods, except for the
following changes. Comparative figures have been
restated or included in these financial statements
in order to achieve a consistent presentation. The
statements of financial position, previously known
as balance sheets, at the beginning of the year of
2008 have not been presented as there were no
changes to the originally published statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised), Presentation of Financial
Statements — The revised standard affects certain
disclosures of financial statements. Under the
revised standard, the Income Statement, the
Balance Sheet and the Cash Flow Statement are
renamed as the “Statement of Comprehensive
Income”, the “Statement of Financial Position” and
the “Statement of Cash Flows” respectively. All
income and expenses arising from transaction with
non-owners are presented under the “Statement
of Comprehensive Income”; while the owners’
changes in equity are presented in the “Statement
of Changes in Equity”.

2.

RMBRUBRE
AMBHREEA]) (F)

ZA([&

(&)

B (BRI HREMIgFRE
mERE
Z8%®) -
REF16%

% (HREE AXPEZAE
wERE
ZE®) -
ZES18H

B L] e T B ANY
BMEERE A2 RAM LB
TERPEAEBR 2 2RES
FMBERAT BEBERTE  H
INTEBBRIN L BREFTE T
B UR B A BF H FRR - DAfE
EHWNAR—B-ARREEE T
BrRRIEELE QI ES
| ZZFZENFY 2 BB R
= (FIHAEEBER) -

EASHEANZ1IR (KB
) [MBWmKkzZ2W] —#%
KT R EHBREZ

aTHE-RELEFTER
BEnkx BEAGBXREKBEEM
£ % (Cash Flow Statement)
fAlZERIZEKER]
(MR AdE] IR
it & & (Statement of Cash
Flows) | - HEAIEE R AR S E
EZHBERARRASTER 2
EHSZ%?%J%@J i %A AR

mEEBAN [REERZF B R
ER 7

—TEAFFR
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BETEEERBRAR

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

HKFRS 8, Operating Segments — HKFRS 8
replaces HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”, and
requires operating segments to be identified on
the basis of internal reports of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker in order to allocate resources to
the segments and to assess their performance. As
the business segments reported by the Group in
accordance with the requirements of HKAS 14 are
the same as the operating segments provided to
the chief operating decision-maker as required by
HKFRS 8, there are no changes to the operating
segments and the relevant segment information on
the adoption of HKFRS 8.

In addition, the Group has early adopted the
amendments to HKFRS 5 under “Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009” issued in May 2009. Accordingly,
disclosure requirements in HKFRSs other than
HKFRS 5 do not generally apply to non-current
assets classified as held for sale and discontinued
operations unless otherwise specified.

Annual Report 2009
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7T 517K )

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMNERBMBREER([B
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) BMBREER]) (&)
(Continued)

(b) Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not (b) MARERMZERBUMBEREE
yet effective AE4X2BERE
The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially AT EBM 2T EERTH
relevant to the Group’s operations, have been B G E R gE A E
issued but are not yet effective and have not been LEBH BHMARESLELRE
early adopted by the Group. B R A o
HKFRSs Amendment to HKFRS 5 BRME BB RERAES
(Amendments) as part of Improvements & LA W ERER
to HKFRSs' (BFTR) B s =R 2
i# 2 Bm
HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs BENK “EENFRENE
(Amendments) 2009, except for %A R BE - 1
amendments to HKFRS (BT A) EBRBRE LR
52 E5% 2B TR AN
Amendments to Share-based Payment BB PARRD 2 1 5B —
HKFRS 2 — Group Cash-settled mEER SRR LEEUR
Share-based Payment FORZEET HERNRH
Transactions?®
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and BEREQHE RARBERNFBRE
Separate Financial Bl E27%
Statements’ (&)
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations’ BERBR EBEMN
EER
F35
(&&&3T)
HK(IFRIC) — Distributions of Non-cash BEE(EERE REBADKERS
Interpretation 17 Assets to Owners’ BBHmE BE
REZE
g2) -2
BEITH
HK(IFRIC) - Extinguishing Financial ERE(BR NESRIAERER
Interpretation 19 Liabilities with Equity BBRE B
Instruments? REZE
2) -
BE10%
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures® BEEHE BEATREES
Bl 245
(£1E3T)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® BB TRIAS
TR
Fo
—EE A
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Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited I

BETEEERBRAR

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b) Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not

yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009 and 1 January, 2010, as appropriate

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect
the Group’s accounting for business combinations
for which the acquisition dates are on or after 1
January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary. Changes in the
Group’s ownership interest that do not result in
loss of control of the subsidiary will be accounted
for as equity transactions.

HKAS 17 (Amendment), Leases — The amendment
to HKAS 17 made under “Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009”, mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010, removes
the specific guidance which stated that land held
under a lease should be classified as an operating
lease unless title to the land is expected to pass
at the end of the lease term. It provides new
guidance which indicates that entity should use
judgement to decide whether the lease transfers
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the land in accordance with the criteria set
out in HKAS 17. The Group will reassess the
classification of land elements of unexpired leases
at the date it adopts the amendment on the basis
of information existing at the inception of the lease
and recognise a lease newly classified as a finance
lease retrospectively if the criteria of a finance
lease is met.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7T 517K )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 3 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

(b)

Potential impact arising on HKFRSs not
yet effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of other
new/revised HKFRSs and the directors so far
concluded that the application of the other new/
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the results and the financial position of the Group.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereafter collectively referred to as
the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

()

State of books and records maintained by
certain subsidiaries

The financial statements have been prepared
based on the books and records maintained
by the Company and its subsidiaries.
However, after the reconstitution of the
Board during the years ended 31 December
2007 and 2008, the Group no longer had
access to certain of books and records of
SJTU Sunway Information Technology Co.
Ltd., SUNV (Beijing) Century Information
Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing Guoxin Sunway
IT Co, Ltd., Shanghai Sunway Century IT Co.,
Ltd. and Fujian Multi Language Translation
Service Co., Ltd., the subsidiaries of the
Company and Beijing Advanced Information
Storage Technology Co., Ltd., an associate of
the Company (collectively the “PRC Group”).
The Board tried to obtain assistance from
the former directors to locate the relevant
information. However, the Board lost contact
with the responsible former directors and
were therefore unable to have access to the
relevant information. As set out in Note 11,
in March 2009, the Group disposed of the
PRC Group which formed part of the Disposal
Group.

In view of the foregoing, the Board could not
give representations as to the completeness
of the books and records of the PRC Group
up to the date of disposal.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7T 517K )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern (b)
assumption (Continued)

(i) Going concern assumption

During the current reporting period, the Group
has recorded a profit of HK$11,870,000
(2008: loss of HK$9,711,000) and at the end
of reporting period, it had net liabilities of
HK$175,000. The reported profit for the year
included a one-off gain of HK$12,021,000 on
the disposal of the Disposal Group as set out
in Note 11. If this gain is excluded, the Group
suffered loss from continuing operations
of HK$151,000 during the year (2008:
HK$7,695,000). This situation indicates the
existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and therefore,
the Group may not be able to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business. The controlling
shareholder has undertaken to provide
continuing financial support, including not to
recall the amount due to them until the Group
is solvent, in order to maintain the Group as a
going concern. In addition, the management
is actively seeking potential investors to inject
new businesses and new funds to the Group.
Accordingly, the financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

(c) Functional and presentational currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

.
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(ABTTIIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
of the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group
companies are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities of the
relevant subsidiaries are measured at their fair
values at the date of acquisition. The interest of
minority shareholders is stated at the minority’s
proportion of the fair values of the assets and
liabilities recognised.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate.

Minority interests represent the portion of profit
or loss and net assets of subsidiaries attributable
to equity interests that are not owned directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, by the Company.
Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
for the year between minority interests and the
owners of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest
is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group
has been recovered.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company
is able to exercise control. Control is achieved
where the Company, directly or indirectly, has
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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(ABTTIIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Non-current assets held for sale and
disposal groups

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.
This conclusion is regarded as met only when
the sale is highly probable and the asset (or
disposal groups) is available for immediate sale
in its present condition. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

The results of operations disposed of during the
year are included in profit or loss up to the date of
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. EXRSTEHE (&)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (d) ME-BERRE (&)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost or valuation net of
expected residual value over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful
lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements

HEMERR T2

Computers and other equipment

fis B B b 3R 18

Furniture and fixtures
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Motor vehicles
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(e)

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

° investments in subsidiaries (except for those
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale) (Note 4(c)).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs to sell and value in use) of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Financial Instruments
(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are initially measured at fair value and all
other financial assets are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. A regular
way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of a financial asset under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation
or convention in the marketplace concerned.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market.
They arise principally through the provision
of goods and services to customers (trade
debtors), and also incorporate other types
of contractual monetary asset. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any
objective evidence that financial asset is
impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and that
event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset that can be
reliably estimated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

(Continued)
Evidence of impairment may include:

e significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

e  granting concession to a debtor because
of debtors’ financial difficulty;

° it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of financial asset is determined
as uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for the relevant financial
asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(f) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv) Effective interest method

= g

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= % ¥

4. EXRSTEHE (&)

(f)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability,

or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(v) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKAS

39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

(h)

(i)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits held at call with banks, and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The total rentals payable under the operating
leases are recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integrated
part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Annual Report 2009

4. EXRSTEHE (&)

(09) BERREEEY

(h)

(i)

ReMReFEVRETHER
T RBITRAER ARRE]
HAPR /3 = f& B sk LA T AT BB s 85
BRRENASHEMEBEZD
[\ Kz B A B = R B 1
BE-

H A

fief B 40 2 15 X 5 4B R BE 0 PP A
R b N bl B = A A
B ZEHOB0BRRER
WemABHMBORDBERE
= -

REMOELZRNES A
REHHBRAERENERE
AR W2 2 HENBRE
FREHTRAX ZEERNE
HA MR ER -

BEA

FRERERAREERENE
m R NHER -



— [:0]

& % 1o
[

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(k)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow
of economic benefits that can be reasonably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Taxation

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.
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BETEEERERAR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the
tax rates expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items directly
recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also directly recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 R 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 R 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

On consolidation, the results of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets
and liabilities of foreign operations are translated
at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising on translating the
opening net assets at opening rate and the results
of foreign operations at actual rate are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss
as part of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits

()

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Shared-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

= % ¥

4. EXRSTEHE (&)

(m) BERH (%)

(ii) Shared-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based
compensation reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to accumulated losses).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 R 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Related parties

For the purposes of the financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i

(i)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence
over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control
over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 R 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Revenue recognition

()

(ii)

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised
on transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which is at the time of delivery and the title is
passed to customers.

Custom-made solutions

When the outcome of a custom-made
solution contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue from a fixed price contract is
recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to
the percentage of contract costs incurred to
date to estimated total contract costs for the
contract.

When the outcome of a custom-made
solution contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will
be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

(ABTTIIR)
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

(a) Impairments

In considering the impairment losses that may
be required for certain of the Group’s assets
which include property, plant and equipment,
other assets and investments in subsidiaries,
recoverable amount of the asset needs to be
determined. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the net selling prices and the value in use.
[t is difficult to precisely estimate selling prices
because quoted market prices for these assets
may not be readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by
the assets are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to
items such as the level of sale volume, selling price
and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an
amount that is reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based on
a reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as sale volume, selling
price and amount of operating costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairments (Continued)

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of
each individual customer. Any increase or decrease
in the allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group reviews annually the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

6. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the revenue from sale of goods
after allowances for goods returned and provision of
custom-made solutions. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in turnover during the
year is as follows:

EEHEHEER (NKREERE
) RIREETRMBA TR WS - F
N REEERIAZSHEEKREAR
WS BT

2009 2008
—BBAE —TINEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR Tt

Continuing Operations FEREXEK
Trading of computer equipment BE SR AL
and accessories 36,803 16,437
Provision of custom-made REFTRBERA R
solutions 138 2,145
36,941 18,582

7. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-
maker that are used to make strategic decisions.

Annual Report 2009

DEBE

AR BRI E S EREAFIES
EREZENBEETELES
o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 R 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

7.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

The Group has three reportable segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business
offers different products and services and requires
different business strategies. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group’s
reportable segments:

Continuing operations

° Computer equipment and accessories -
trading of computer hardware and software,
and computerised smart sockets and related
accessories

e (Custom-made solutions - developing and
implementing custom-made solutions which
are specifically designed and developed for the
specific needs and requirements of a particular
customer

DEBE (F)

AEEE=ETRESE-ERE
EBIRUTAESR RS H% %
B 5 W BT B 0 B T B B
12 o LA 2 B W A R B T 46
EHPLEE:

FEEERE

s EHRBLEMF-EEEME
R &AM B e E M
AH B8 B 1

o RIEBANR-FABELATH
REBPRBEFTENMERM
i Bl B AT M BB 2 RT RRIOR Ty

ES

—TEAFFR

’r’



Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
BEFBEEEBR AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7T 517K )

7. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. DEHRE (H&)
Discontinued operations BERIEEEEK
e Information localisation services — providing e FEEAMLERE - REBER
translation and information localisation services 15 BN AR 75
(a) Business Segment (a) XF¥ %
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BEREER BALBEEK
Computer equipment Custom-made Information
and accessories solutions localisation services Total
ERREREH HE:S VS EEALRE @zt

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEENE CZT)\F ZBEAE _TT/\F ZBRAE _TT)\F ZBENF _TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
TAr  TET  FEn  TEx  FEx  TExr  TER  TAx

Revenue from external customers  RESNAEF 2 W 36,803 16,437 138 2,145 - - 36,941 18,582

Reportable segment profit/loss) A& A EET],/
(BR) 2,513 1,794 (285) (1,057 - (2,016) 2,278 (1,279)

Depreciation fE - - 23 - - - 23 -
Income tax expense FERRAY (346) (147) - - - - (346) (147)
Reportable segment assets URENEEE 4,229 9,233 485 189 - 12,888 4714 22310
Additions to non-current assets ~ FEFTHEE - - 282 - - - 282 -
Reportable segment liabilties THENEEE (2,750  (7,359) (130) - - (7074 (2,880)  (34,439)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 7T 517K )
7. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. 2E®RE (&)
Discontinued operations (Continued) ERIEREEK (&)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (b) THELDE K B BER

profit or loss, assets and liabilities BEEZHE
2009 2008
—EEhF —ZTTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F& T
Revenue Wz
Revenue from external customers KREIINARRE Z W 36,941 18,582
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRATBHRAXIRELAL
expense and discontinued mEERARR
operations (EBE)
Reportable segment profit from B EEBN RS
continuing operations 7 8 2,278 737
Segment loss from discontinued ERIERERH 2
operations D IEEE - (2,016)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBRPER (2,083) (6,269)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before BRISERKEEBIIEN
income tax expense FX Rl ZéREmF,
from continuing operations (E#8) 195 (7,548)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets from FELEERE 2 A RE
continuing operations NEEE 4,714 9,422
Segment assets of discontinued ERIEEEEBR 2
operations NIEEE - 12,888
Unallocated corporate assets AOBREEEE 6,691 12,629
Consolidated total assets e BERE 11,405 34,939
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities from FELEEE 2 A RE
continuing operations nEEE (2,880) (7,359)
Segment liabilities of discontinued ERIEREEE 2
operations vol H=NEi - (27,074)
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROBREEEE (8,700) (15,370)
Consolidated total liabilities mERAERE (11,580) (49,808)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

7. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Discontinued operations (Continued)

(c) Geographical information and major

customers

The Group’s revenue from external customers is
derived solely from its operations in Hong Kong,
where all its non-current assets are located.

During the year, revenue from the Group’s largest
customer amounted to HK$36,104,000 (2008:
HK$15,548,000), being 98% (2008: 95%) of
the Group’s total revenue from the computer
equipment and accessories segment.

For the custom-made solutions segment, all the
revenue of HK$138,000 is from a single customer
for the year of 2009 (2008: HK$1,375,000, being
64% of the Group’s total revenue in this segment).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B % R MY EE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )
8. OTHER REVENUE 8. Hiburz
2009 2008
—EEAFE —_ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET TET
Waiver of loan from a former AIRRERERE
shareholder 1,170 -
Imputed interest income (Note 17)  HEFISUWA (Kit17) 335 -
Others HAb 272 -
1,777 -
9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME 9. HEREEK ZRABHMANG

TAX EXPENSE FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS

Profit/(loss) before income tax expense from continuing

operations is arrived at after charging:

(a)

M, (EE)

FBEEEB 2 BAERANEN

(BE)EMBRETIIRE:

Finance costs: (a) BEERA:
2009 2008
—EEhF —ZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FER FAT
Interest expense on financial FEAFEFELIRERRZES
liabilities not at fair value ZemBEZANERAE
through profit or loss
— Interest on other loan —BRAFABHEE 2 EAfth
wholly repayable within EHRFE
five years - 144
— Imputed interest on —BRREEEREETFE
interest-free loans from
a shareholder 682 210
— Imputed interest on —HIRR R EEREEFE
interest-free loan from a
former shareholder 17 12
699 366
—EE A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R % B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME
TAX EXPENSE FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS (Continued)

9. FEKEXB ZRABH AR
M, (ER|) (&)

(b) EIRAF (BEESHE) :

(b) Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments):

2009 2008
—EBEEANF —ZFTTNF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Salaries, wages and ¥re  T&ENMZERM
allowances 3,347 3,577
Contributions to pension BAREFHEIHR (M iE26)
schemes (Note 26) 84 94
3,431 3,671
(c) Other items (c) HfEA:
2009 2008
—EEAE —ZTIT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
Auditor’s remuneration % SAD B & 420 480
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% BB M REITE (H1:£16)
and equipment (Note 16) 40 97
Fair value adjustment on WEMB AR @2 AFE
deposit for acquisition of TR
subsidiary - 630
Impairment loss on other H b e WK I8 2 B 5 18
receivables (Note 18) (fta£18) 30 -
Write off of property, plant and ¥ 3 - 5= [ 2% &5 il 85
equipment (Note 16) (Htit16) 86 178
Office rental MAEMS 693 1,068
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10.

Taxation in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income represents provision for Hong Kong profits tax
calculated at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits
for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, no
provision for PRC income tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profit subject to the income
tax rules and regulations in the PRC.

The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

FRrEBiR X

WAGLAEZANRBZXRZHBATS
MEFEE SEMNESHRIOEHE
—EENFR_EENF+ A
=+ —BLEEFEZGHFERT S
FILA16.5% 2 T Kt E -

B2 _TTNFR-_ZFTNF+=
A=t —BLEFE BREFBEFAHR
BRARAUBERT AEEY EE
AR A - B Utk 34 g R B AT S R
FTEERE -

REEEERERAZHIEAS R
15 -

2009 2008
—EERAEFE —TINF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAETT

Current tax — Hong Kong EVERTIE — B/
Provision for the year FREE 415 147
Over provision in respect of RiBEFEBEEE
prior years (69) -
346 147
—TThEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FTBFHBAX (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled FAMGEHRAXTEEZES2E RS
to the profit/(loss) per the consolidated statement of RIBBREEKRERN,/ (BE)YH
comprehensive income from continuing operations as RN :
follows:
2009 2008

—BBRE ~“TT\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THE T

Profit/(loss) before income tax FREISE TGRS T AL
expense from continuing wmF (EE)
operations 195 (7,548)

Taxation calculated at Hong Kong & B HMEH £16.5%

profits tax rate of 16.5% (2008: (ZEENF:16.5%):TEZ

16.5%) T8 32 (1,245)
Tax effect of expenses not PABRAZ 2 MBE

deductible for taxation purposes 148 329
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for HZBER A 2 55 &

tax purposes (179) -
Tax effect on unused tax losses not KREBRZ ABAHEEEZ

recognised M2 413 1,063
Others HAty (68) -

346 147
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

11. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 2 March 2009, the Company entered into a sale
agreement to dispose of its entire equity interest of
Besto Investment Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary,
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Disposal Group”).
The Disposal Group engaged in the business of
providing information localisation services and had
been dormant for more than two years. The disposal
was completed on 9 March 2009, the date on which
the control of Besto Investment Limited passed to the
acquirer.

The loss for the year from discontinued operations and
cash flows were as follows:

1. CRIEREER CFEBRN

(BR)
J‘ié:%@?jli_ﬂ:a KR AR
VEEBRNLERZEAME R A

Besto Investment Limited 5 H Fif B
REl(GBATHESERE]) 223K
o N EEBE FRHE B AR
BEE HEEMFULRBEEEE
Be-zHEER_SETAFE=ZANH
SEAX * Besto Investment LimitedZ
THIRERNZBEE TWRES -

ERIBEXBCFEBERRS
MEDHTT:

From From
1 January 1 January
2009 2008 to
to the date 31 December
of disposal 2008
H-ZEZh&F — ﬂ HZE
—HA—HBZ% —EENF
HEER +-A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Turnover LERE - -
Cost of sales 35 & A - -
Administrative expenses THAX - (12)
Finance costs B & kAN - (2,004)
- (2,016)

Add: Gain on disposal of m:EmEHEEE W
the Disposal Group 12,021 -
12,021 (2,016)

Cash outflows from: TH&BEZREME

Operating activities KEEH - (6)
Investing activities KREEH - -
Financing activities B &S B - -
- (6)
—TThEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

11.

12.

(ABTTIIR)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
Disposal Group at the date of disposal are disclosed in
Note 25.

A gain of HK$12,021,000 (2008: HK$nil) arose on
the disposal, being the proceeds of disposal less the
carrying amount of the Disposal Group’s net liabilities.
No tax charge or credit arose from the disposal.

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
includes a profit of HK$166,000 (2008: loss of
HK$7,711,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.
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11.

12.

BERILREXB 2 FERF
(E1|) (&)

HESBEEERBERKERNZ
FREECEM 25K E -

KEHEZ W A12,021,000/% 7T
(ZZEZENF:TFx)  BHEMS
REREHESEBAGEFECEA
B HEWES|I BERBRBERBEE -

ERRERFEABERR,
(B1])

ARRERFEAEGEENBE—
15166,0008 L 2w A (ZEZEN
FE#E7,711,0008 L) 2R K
RAZHBHRERTRE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2009

13. EEM =

RIRRIER LB R REERQAME
ERIARTS & = kg I

BE-_ZETENAF+-A=+—-HL

FE
Salaries,
allowances Contributions Waived
Directors’  and benefits to pension  emoluments
fee in kind schemes (note 6) Total
He 2ER BEHREN BHEzMe
EzHe ENAE HE L5 (Hi7t6) -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TET TET TERL TAR
Executive Directors HTES
Cheung Yu Ping fnote 1) KFE (Hfi1) - 550 11 (112) 449
Lee Ah Sang fnote 4) FDE () - 440 11 (59) 392
Chan Chi Chiu, Henry (note §) - R (H7723) - 440 11 (112) 339
Independent Non-Executive ~ BUXHTEES
Directors
Chan Wai Fat fnote 7) RER (H#1) 120 - - - 120
Jin Guangjun (note 3) SEE (M3 120 - - - 120
Law Kin Ho fnote 2) BRZE (Wit2) 120 - - - 120
360 1,430 3 (283) 1,540
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 13. ESM & (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2008

HE-TTN\F+-A=+-AL
FE

Salaries,

allowances  Contributions

Directors”  and benefits to pension
fee in kind schemes Total

He RMR SRR
EEHE EMAlE SRR @t
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHT FHT TET TET

Executive Directors BTES
Cheung Yu Ping (note 1) RFF (M) - 414 6 420
Lee Anh Sang (note 4) FD%E(Wit4) - 188 3 191
Chan Chi Chiu, Henry B (fis)

(note 3) - 354 6 360
Henry Dicker Yee (note §) 43K (f:5) - 642 7 649
Tan Shu Jiang (note 5) BET(HiE5) - 5 - 5

Independent Non-Executive BIYFHTES
Directors
Chan Wai Fat (note 1) BRER (M) 56 - - 56
Jin Guangjun (note 3) SEE (Bi23) 56 - - 56
Law Kin Ho (note 2) BRR (MiH2) 56 - - 56
Chan Cheong Yee (note 5) WEE (His) 32 - - 32
Ronald Gary Hopp (note 5)  Ronald Gary Hopp
(Hits) 2 - - 2
Yip Tai Him (note 5) Bk (i) 32 - - 32
234 1,603 22 1,859
Notes: B 5 -
. Appointed on 14 July 2008 1.
2. Appointed on 14 July 2008 and resigned on 8 March 2010 2.

3. Appointed on 14 July 2008 and resigned on 17 March 2010

4. Appointed on 2 October 2008

5. Resigned on 14 July 2008

6. The directors had agreed to unconditionally waive their
emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 December 2008.

No emoluments were paid to the Company’s directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office for the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

14. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 14.
EMOLUMENTS

REHAL

AEBLEREHEALTEFR WA
(ZEENF =ZR)RESE HB
SREBRMEISHE - BN =2 1H
MALT(ZZEZNF - WE) 2B =

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2008: three) are directors whose emolument is
disclosed in Note 13. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the other three (2008: two) individuals is as

follows: BWEEADT -
2009 2008
—EEhF —ZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FE T FHET
Salaries, wages and allowances e TENEZE, 1,259 518
Contributions to pension schemes  ER& T8I 35 13
1,294 531

AEBHEM=%2(ZFTFTN\F:'®W
R)BERHFHFETALZMEN T

The emoluments of three (2008: two) non-director
individuals with the highest emoluments are within the

following band: AT EHE -
2009 2008
—EEAE ZTTNF
No. of No. of
employees employees
BEAH BB AR
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ %£1,000,000/% 7T 3 2

No amounts were paid or payable during the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 to the five highest
paid employees in connection with their loss of office,
or inducement to join.

BE_ZTTENFLR-_ZEZEN\F+=
A=1t—BLFE UECHXE
NFPEE&ESFALTZEMMS
EREEHBMENBBINANE
Bz E -

—TEAFFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

(i) From continuing and discontinued
operations

The calculation is based on the profit
attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$11,870,000 (2008: loss of
HK$9,711,000) and the number of ordinary
shares of 200,000,000 (2008: 200,000,000)
in issue during the year.

(ii) From continuing operations

The calculation is based on loss for the year
from continuing operations of HK$151,000
(2008: HK$7,695,000) and the number
of ordinary shares of 200,000,000 (2008:
200,000,000) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is not presented
as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December
2009 and 2008.
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15. EREBR  (E#E)
(a) BREEXER (FE#R)

() FEREHKUZERE

BREARBF(EE)
DEARAERITAA
JE {5 5% 11,870,000/
T(ZZEZENE BB
9,711,000 L) K F A
200,000,000 (== =
J\£ 1 200,000,0000% )
EETEEREE R

= o
>t

(i) FEELEH

ERERNBEEDEEE
KEXEB 2 FEBIE
151,000 L (ZEF N\
& 17,695,000 1) &
F N200,000,0008% ( —
T Z )\ & : 200,000,000
RIBBTL AR ZEE
E

(b) BREERER (EE)

HREBEE-_ZEZNFR_ZFZ
NEFE+ZA=+—BLFEH
BEEMBEEE CHTERA
R At EENGRESTR
M (E8) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTHIR)
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

b Y ¥

16. WX -MERKRE

Computers Furniture
Leasehold and other and Motor
improvements equipment fixtures vehicles Total
nEng EER AR
BRIE ARt %E "E @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER T TER
The Group b3
Cost A
At 1 January 2008 RZEENF-A—8 779 2,363 1,264 833 5,239
Additions AE - 61 4 - 65
Write off k= (267) - - - (267)
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE+ZA=T—H 512 2,424 1,268 833 5,087
Additions RE - 282 - - 282
Write off il (512) (2,404) (1,265) (839) (5,014)
At 31 December 2009 RZBEAFT-A=+—H - 302 3 - 305
Accumulated depreciation: 2iHE:

t 1 January 2008 R=EENF-A-H 548 2,312 1,219 833 4912
Charge for the year (Note 9c)  AEEHE (#/29c)) 53 24 20 - 97
Written back on write off HiERED (89) - - - (89)
At 31 December 2008 RZEZN\F+ZA=1—H 512 2,336 1,239 833 4,920
Charge for the year (Note 9c) ~ REEIE (#1i290)) - 34 6 - 40
Written back on write off ikiskicE HE (512) (2,339) (1,244) (833) (4,928)
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNETZA=+—H - 31 1 - 32

Carrying amount; REE:
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+ZA=1—H - 271 2 - 273
At 31 December 2008 RZEZNE+-A=+—H - 88 29 - 17

—TEAFFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

17. DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARY

On 16 May 2006, Surplus Trade Investment Limited
(“Surplus Trade”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement
with Mr. Wong Chi Wai (“Mr. Wong”), an independent
third party, to acquire the entire equity interest of First
Preview Limited and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “First Preview Group”) for a consideration of
HK$42,000,000. First Preview Group is engaged in
hotel business.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group
paid an aggregate amount of HK$10,000,000 which
was retained as a deposit for the acquisition of First
Preview Group. As certain conditions set out in
such equity transfer agreement were not fulfilled, the
transaction was not completed. According to the terms
of the transfer agreement, Mr. Wong would refund the
deposit of HK$10,000,000 to the Group.

During the year, HK$3,000,000 (2008: HK$1,000,000)
was refunded to the Group. The remaining balance
of HK$5,705,000 (2008: HK$5,370,000) stated at fair
value by discounting at market interest rate will be
refunded by December 2010 and included in “Trade
and other receivables” under current assets (Note 18).
During the year ended 31 December 2009, an imputed
interest of HK$335,000 (2008: HK$nil) has been
credited to profit or loss (Note 8).
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17. WM B AR 23] €

RZZETZXFRAA+AA AR
Al 2 = &M B A 7 Surplus Trade
Investment Limited ([Surplus
Trade ] ) B2 ¥ 7 % = 77 Wong Chi
Waist & ([WongZ £ 1) 3132 — 153
IR s R ek - LAUI# First Preview
Limited & E Hf & 2 7] (£t 1 [First
Previews & | ) 2 25 k#E - R(E A
42,000,000/ JT ° First Preview%
B EREER-

HE_ZTETERF+_A=+—8H1t
FE AKEBEZFAE 10,000,000
BT REEHREBIEWREFIrst
PreviewS B 2 5] & c AR ik &
EmEAE A TR REK
ZR 5K TTRK o 1R 15 R =&
&3 - Wongst £ # A A & B iR [0
10,000,000/8 7T Z 5] & °

FR-AKEZEREED3,000,000
B (ZZFZE)\F :1,000,0008
TL) RIS A EITI/ I AR F(AE
FI|BR 2 #2 %85,705,0008 L (= &
T )\ 5,370,000 L) B R - F
—ZTFE+ZRAZAREIW Y AR
BEEB TN [EWER R EMAE
WRZzAl (#aF18) - REE-Z
ENF+-_A=+—HBLEFERN"
335,000 T (ZFEZENF TE
TTIZIHEEFBEE ABEE (W
i8) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EWEBRF & H b FE IR
Group Company
X%E b NN
2009 2008 2009 2008

—2ENE ZTT/\F  ZRERF  ZTT)\RF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TEL TER TEL

Trade debtors JE W BR 3K 4,223 8,126 - -
Other receivables H b FE W3R - 30 - 30
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Wt if B A ] FUA - - 6,004 15,674
Loans and receivables SRR W 4,223 8,156 6,004 15,704
Deposits and prepayments HEDSENE:

(Note 17) (Hi#t17) 5,891 3,335 100 140

10,114 11,491 6,104 15,844
The amounts due from the subsidiaries (net of F‘%H&Mﬂ%’&ﬁj%lﬁ;( kR REHRE
accumulated impairment losses of HK$4,550,000 E5¢E4’55O:QOO_79‘§75\( —ETN\F:
(2008: HK$22,937,000) are unsecured, interest free and 22,937,000 70) ) B ARE A - R 2
have no fixed repayment terms. B B E R R
(a) The average credit period to the Group’s trade (a) %&%};@H&Eﬁ%ﬂZii’;ﬂg%ﬁ,ﬁﬂ
debtors is 60 days. /360H -
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EWERF R HbFEUL R (48)
(Continued)

(b) The movements in the allowance for doubtful b) FARKBEZYH (BEET
debts during the year, including both specific and REFBEKD) AT :
collective loss components, are as follows:

Group

AEHE
2009 2008
—EBEEANF —ZFTTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT

Trade receivables JE W BR X

At beginning of year F 4 - 11,308
Provision for impairment loss  J&l (B /&5 18 5 & - -
Uncollectible amount written off i §8 7 AE 4g [l 2 7K IA - (11,308)
At end of year FIR - -
Other receivables Hi AR

At beginning of year F 4 - -
Provision for impairment loss BB & BE & (#1:9(c))

(Note 9(c)) 30 _
Uncollectible amount written off il $4< & Uk [@ 2 k18 (30) -
At end of year Fr - -
The Group and the Company recognised KEI&K AR 15 BT T 4(F) (i)
impairment loss on individual assessment based itz & 5T R V1R Bl ET A DA
on the accounting policy stated in Note 4(f)(ii). ﬁﬁ m\/UHE fE518 -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. FEUR AR FU R H 1 FE WK (&)
(Continued)
(c) The ageing analysis of impaired trade receivables (c) EREERWKENRZ KRR TN
is as follows: ™
2009 2008
—EERAFE —TT)NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Within 30 days 30H AR 4,223 2,356
31 to 60 days 31260H - 3,772
61 to 90 days 61290H - 1,998
4,223 8,126
(d) The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are (d) 3 % (R Bl sk Bl — M AR B B R

neither individually nor collectively considered to

1B 2 W RR R Z BR ik o A an

be impaired is as follows: I
Group
rEHE
2009 2008
—EEhF —TTN\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FER FHET
Not past due 4% 360 HY 4,223 6,128
Less than 1 month past due BEALR—EA - 1,998
4,223 8,126
The trade receivables relate to customers that JEWBR R ASE B RFE

have a good track record with the Group. Based
on the past experience, management believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of this balance as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balance is still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over this balance.

BRBZEPAB -REBE
K ANGEEERYEERX
EEHA ﬁﬂéf)ﬂﬁ%—w/&*%%
B WEEERSBANLE
ﬁ?f’Eﬁfﬂﬂﬁﬁéﬁ RE B &
AR AT AEAS-

—TEAFFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

19. BERAESEEY

Group Company
x5E NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENE ZTT)\H ZEBRFE CZITIT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT TER AL
Cash and bank balances: Re RRTERS:
Hong Kong dollars BT 1,018 5,073 825 -
Renminbi (included in assets AR (B3I A
classified as held for sale) RIEHEEE) - 178 - -
1,018 5,251 825 -

At the end of reporting period, the Group had no
cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) (2008: RMB156,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. BANK LOAN

(ABTTIIR)

20. SRITER

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEAE —ET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FER FAT
Bank loan (unsecured) RITER (EEF) - 15,960
Reclassified to liabilities directly BB REFIELEEE
associated with assets held BEREBEzB8E (Wit2s5)
for sale (Note 25) - (15,960)

The bank loan formed part of the Disposal Group
(as defined in Note 11) and had been reclassified to
liabilities directly associated with assets held for sale
during the year ended 31 December 2008. The disposal
of the Disposal Group was completed on 9 March 2009

as set out in Note 11.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

RITERBREEER (TEEZLZHW
F11)2—8n WEREBE_ZTZ
NFE+_A=+—BLFEEHTH
HREBELEEEEEEBA A
E-HESBEENR _ZEZNF=A
NBEFTERHE R sE11mE -

21. EHBRAREMENR

Group Company
S| NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EEhE CZTTN\E CZBEANE CZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TAER TET
Trade creditors TR 2,370 7,359 - -
Other creditors and HiER R EER
accrued charges 1,059 1,320 949 1,199
Amount due to subsidiaries FERTBH B2 Rl A - - 3,307 8,136
Financial liabilities measured ~ REHEM AT E 2
at amortised cost tRAasE 3,429 8,679 4,256 9,335

The amounts due to the subsidiaries are unsecured,

non-interest bearing
repayment.

and have no fixed terms of

B AR KRR EER 28

—TEAFFR
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21, ERERAREMESRK (&)
(CONTINUED)
Trade and other payables are expected to be settled Fir B FE 1~ BR 3% J2 £ b FE < 5K 78 BA 7%
within one year. The ageing analysis of trade creditors R—FRNEE EXHREHEER
as of the end of reporting period is as follows: BRI T -
2009 2008

—BBAE —TINEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR Tt

Within 30 days 30 AN 2,258 1,978
31 to 60 days 31Z260H - 3,169
61 to 90 days 61290H 112 2,212
2,370 7,359
22. SHARE CAPITAL 22, IR
2009 2008
—EENE —ETNF
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RHEE t 8 BB k|
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
T8’ THER Fhz TET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of BREEOIETLY
HK$0.01 each T m R 4,000,000 40,000 4,000,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRARE
At beginning and end of year ~ F I R F LK 200,000 2,000 200,000 2,000
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23. RESERVES 23. f#fE
(a) Reserve of the Company () =R TF#EE
Share Share Capital Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
TN K EE EAGE 2iEE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TET TET TEL TAR

Balance at 1 January RZEENE-A-BzE#
2008 2,000 30,224 - (32,454) (230)

Total comprehensive FREEMAEE

income for the year - - - (7,711) (7,711)
Capital contribution RENEEEFTIE

by a shareholder

in the form of

interest-free loans - - 2,144 - 2,144

Balance at 31 December R-EZNF+-A=f+—-HZ
2008 g 2,000 30,224 2,144 (40,165) (5,797)

Total comprehensive FREEEAMANEE

income for the year - - - 166 166
Capital contribution REEEEREH
by a shareholder FHELILE

arising from changes
in the terms of the
interest-free loans - - 654 - 654

Balance at 31 December R-ZTAF+-A=+—-HZ
2009 e 2,000 30,224 2,798 (39,999) (4,977)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

23. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents capital
contribution from a shareholder in the form
of interest-free loans. The amounts are
estimated by discounting the nominal value
of their non-interesting bearing loans to the
Group at current market interest rate for
similar financial instruments.

Capital surplus

Capital surplus mainly represents the
unconditional waiver of loans by the
shareholders of Besto Investment Limited,
The loans were made to enable the Group
to contribute capital to SJTU Sunway
Information Technology Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2009

23. f## (&)

(b) EZHEERBE®

(i) RtzEE

REREBFSRAE R
ARARBEMEERZER
AR T ARFRR

HEREBERZED

Hi1& - KRR BABEE R
ERBEXBTIHZE

47"%0

(i) BXHE

BARRHBERRAR
RZEE -RBUABRTA
SETEERZEER
BLUEBMITAZRITHS

RSN

(iii) ZE X E e

B AR % T EIEEBesto
Investment Limitedfi% &
EIEHRREZER M
EHRERREATEAEHE
AR RER (ER)fF
BEREMAERAGEE -
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(ABTTIIR)

23. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(iv) General reserve

v)

According to the articles of association of
the subsidiaries in the PRC, the subsidiaries
are required to set up a general reserve and
the transfer to this fund are at the discretion
of the subsidiaries. This fund can be utilised
to acquire property, plant and equipment,
to increase current assets and may be
converted into paid-in capital. Transfers from
this fund are subject to approval by its board
of directors. The amount was transferred to
accumulated losses upon the disposal of the
Disposal Group.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt within
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 4(l). The amount was realised
upon the disposal of the Disposal Group and
was released to profit or loss.

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

& % 1o
[

23. f## (&)

(b) EEZHEERE N (F)

(iv)

v)

— R

RAZ BB AR 2 A A
ERMAMA B ARAR
N—RRER LR B A
AREEEKEEZRH
w-ETARAERED
X BEMRE ZINR
HEESBRASEHE
Ko QA ELEAFIAR
BEREHNBEBRARZES
SHER TAFEE-Z
ERIOINEL L EEER
BRERFER-

E L #E

N EERERE NG
ENRMEHMERAEEZ
FTEERZ8E -ZHEED
BEEHRE T4z 25
BREIE - ZBEBEE RN
EEEELEERT MR
Br K A B2 o

24 RBARAZRE

2009 2008

—EERE ZEZNF

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FET FHEIT

Unlisted shares, at cost * EWRRD - KA 8 13,765
Less: Impairment loss B OREEE - (13,764)
8 1

—TEAFFR
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24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

24. RB AR 2w (&)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries R-ZZEEAF+-_A=1+—H"5
which are all wholly owned by the Company as at 31 RARBEZERBZARBEEM
December 2009 were as follows: BRRIZHBWOT

Country of

incorporation Description

Name of company

and operation

of share held

Principal activity

= 8 A% 3 &
nE BB RERER FiislRoME FEER
Surplus Trade Investment Limited The British US$1,000 Investment holding
Virgin Islands 1,000 HEER
RBRELS
Pearlica Technologies Limited The British US$1  Provision of
Virgin Islands 1357T custom-made
EBEXS solutions services
REFTRERT =
Forever Trend Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Administration
KEERBRAF BB 187 1THER
Max Honour International Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Trading of computer
IHREREBRRA A BB 17T equipment and
accessories
BEEBRRELREN
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25. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(ABTTIIR)

As referred to Note 11, on 9 March 2009, the Group
disposed of its subsidiary, Besto Investment Limited
and its subsidiaries, which was engaged in provision
of information localisation services. The net liabilities of
the Disposal Group at the date of disposal and at 31

December 2008 were as follows:

25. HEWEB A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M1 AR - R=ZFEENF=A
B AEBEHEHEK B R FBesto
Investment Limited & 5% A & 2 i B
NAE] R ARMERMEE B AR
BEBK LESBREHERHE=F
ZENF+_A=+—HZFEEW

T
At the date
of disposal 2008
REERH —ZTZTNF
HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 178 178
Deposits for acquisition of
subsidiaries WEMB AR ZA € 12,710 12,710
Trade and other payables JE AT BR SR R EC A PR S R (10,587) (10,587)
Bank loan, unsecured (Note 20) BIEIRTTE R (#7720) (15,960) (15,960)
Other loan payables H b T E R (527) (527)
(14,186) (14,186)
Release of exchange reserve R BRE X R 3,641
Loss attributable to VYRR EEEE
minority interests (1,476)
Gain on disposal (Note 11) HE ks (A1) 12,021
Consideration KE —
Net cash outflow arising HESI A ML FEE:
on disposal:
Cash consideration ReRKE -
Cash and bank balances FrELRe RIRITHAR
disposed of (178)
(178)
“EENFEH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26.

27.

(ABTTIIR)
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Upon the disposal of the Disposal Group, the Group no
longer had any employees in the PRC. Pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
former PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme (the “Scheme”)
organised by the PRC municipal government whereby
the former PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the Scheme for the retirement benefits of eligible
employees. Contributions made were calculated
based on 19% to 34% of the payroll costs of the
eligible employees. The PRC municipal government is
responsible for the administration of the Scheme. The
former PRC subsidiaries are not liable to any retirement
benefits beyond its obligation to contribute.

For providing retirement benefits to its employees
in Hong Kong, the Group has set up a mandatory
provident fund (“MPF”) scheme which is available
to all Hong Kong employees. The Group’s and the
employees’ contributions to the MPF scheme are
based on 5% of the relevant income of the relevant
employees in accordance with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance and
related regulations. Contributions made to the above
schemes by the Group amounted to HK$84,000 (2008:
HK$94,000) for the year. No other scheme for the
retirement benefit is participated by the Group.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) of the Company
was adopted on 25 November 2003 for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants,
including the executive directors of the Company, who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
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BESFERR-FA AEER L
ot 51 £ 1 k84,0008 L (=&
T\ : 94,0008 7T) o AL B £
2 B8 H fth 3R K48 A 51 &)

URAEE 2RO S

ARAR=FE=F+—A=+=
BB ) — TE 9 IR R B (st
B SERAYREREL ZKY
FHEBZ A ERERAL RIS
BREE EHREARANTE
Eo



——, i } S I ™
e I = o 0.3
Q i .

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 R 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

27. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 27. URAEE 2R B H (&)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Board of Directors of the Company may, at their
discretion, grant option to the eligible participants
including any employees, directors, suppliers,
customers, advisors, consultants, joint venture
partners and any shareholders of any members of the
Group or any invested entities or any holders of any
securities issued by any members of the Group or
any invested entities. The maximum number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all options granted under its Scheme or any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not exceed 30% of its issued share capital from time
to time. The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 20,000,000
shares, being 10 per cent of the shares in issue unless
it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of
the Company. The maximum number of shares issuable
under the options to each eligible participant in any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares in issue
unless it is approved by substantial shareholders in a
general meeting of the Company. Any grant of options
under the Scheme to a director, chief executive,
management shareholder or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their respective associates must
be approved by independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who
or whose associate is the proposed grantee of the
options). Any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
in any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of the Company.

ARREEgnlEREaERSH
ATEBREERE BETRNES
EEx HED - XFP EBEME -ZHE
M AECEBHRASEBETMAK
BRAINMEMKEER  AMKRE
S AEEEAKE QA EMAK
BERAMBTENER2EAEES
AN BBEZFTE I ARRER 2
R EMERET SR E 2FEER
ERITERRERIT 2 ARAIRD
HE BRETHEBATHERITR
R230% - BRIEZTE R ALE T
R EMERETEE TREZHE
EREETERREETZIRNE
H A& £ 7158 1B20,000,0008% - B
BETRMDZ10% B IERAKRRQ T
BREREAE EERREHERBIER -
PAMER + Z & B HA R - 4R 15 BB AR
RBZREAER2BEATRITZR
NEESHBE LRAEEBITRGZ
1% BRIEVARRIBRE RS LEF
TR R ALK RIVE R 58 o 1B 1B % 51 &
AARANAESR TBTHALS EIE
EREIFERRKFBESH 2B
BARTERE BAELSEIIER
TEE(TBEEERGHEBEA
BEBREREZ AR AZBYLIERTT
BEE)HE - REM T @A HMRE -
MAAREERERBIIENTE
ERFESBZEMNBBEARL
AR ERE B BEEITHRG
0 1% KR BE (RERL BB KRN
WMmEHE)BBEES T YA
RARBIRREARNEG EEARFHE -

—TEAFFR
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27.

28.

(LAB T 3I5R)
EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 business days from the date of the offer of
grant of the option. The consideration for a grant of
options the Company is HK$1.00. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determined by the Board
of Directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by
the Board of Directors providing that the exercise price
of the share options shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares on GEM as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date of
the offer of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares on GEM as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

No share option under the Scheme was granted and
outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2009
and 2008.

DEFERRED TAXATION NOT RECOGNISED

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of tax losses of HK$8,140,000 (2008:
HK$22,161,000) as it is not certain that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised.

The Company had no significant potential deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the years ended 31 December
2009 and 2008 and at the end of the reporting periods.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A7 75117 )

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

(@) During the year, the Group paid rental expenses
of HK$582,000 (2008: HK$407,000) to a related
company. The spouse of Cheung Yu Ping, a
director of the Company, is a director of the related
company.

(b) Amounts due to a shareholder were unsecured,
interest free and had been fully repaid during the
year.

(c) Loans from a shareholder are unsecured, interest
free and not repayable before 31 August 2013.
The loans were stated at fair value as of the end
of the reporting period which was estimated by
discounting the nominal value of the loans at
current market interest rate of similar financial
instruments.

(d) The remuneration of directors as disclosed in Note
13 and other members of key management during
the year was as follows:

20. BEAEXRSF

ARENAFEEBEAL GRS
MRS :

(@) ANEEBEERFAR—HEE
N E X HE 2 582,000
7T (ZZZF/)\F 407,000/
L) ARREZTRFFEZERB
RZBERRICES-

(b) BNBRRzFAR/EERT %
BEREIERFRNBRE -

(c) MRZERASEEM RER
DRBER=ZFT—=FN\A
Zt+—HAEE-BHEENRD
BRWEHEEREZ A AT
kR FELAEZT@EREMU
ERMITAZRITMGHNRFR
mHE -

(d) MIFH1SFIEBECFAZEEME
REMFEEBABEZHMES W
T

2009 2008
—EBAE —TT)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE  TB%

Short-term benefits 5 HATE A 2,766 2,908
Post employment benefits BB R T 68 52
2,834 2,960
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30. AMOUNT DUE TO/LOAN FROM A FORMER

31.

SHAREHOLDER

During the year, a former shareholder unconditionally
waived the balances in aggregate of HK$1,170,000
(2008: HK$nil) due by the Group.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which include bank and other borrowings, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.
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31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

32.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as
follows:

1. EXRREE (&)

RRmERARERB2EREELL
KT :

2009 2008

—BERE —TTNF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FAT

Debts &% 7,658 30,390
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY (1,018) (5,251)
Net debts B F5E 6,640 25,139
Equity = (175) (14,864)
Net debts to equity ratio BB TR N/ATER N/ATER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments in the normal course of the Group’s
business are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk
and currency risk.

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. Management has
credit policy in place and the exposure to this
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

- HREREE

EAKEREXRHBIET ALK
BRI AMELAZTZARERE
EERR - RBEDER  FXRER
KNEBRER -

AEEFBATHBHEERRRIE
1) 2R 22 ) 5% 5 Rl B

(a) FERR
AEBEZEERRIEZRAE
Y R R Ko EL A FE MK - B IR B

REGERR AEEBESE
ZRERSE 2 EERR -

—TEAFFR
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties failure to perform
their obligations as at 31 December 2009 in
relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position after deducting impairment allowance. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debtor at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

At the end of reporting period, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk as 35% (2008: 71%) of
the total trade and other receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer. The Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in Note 18.
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32. K ERER (&)

(a)

FERR (&)

HXHEFREBTER-FT
ZNFE+_A=+—HBAES
HMEHREMEELAEET A
REE PR R AEERR
R A M BAR BRI %%
TR EEHRBIERFBR 2K
EE - REEEERR K&
EEREEERKNEEMAER
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AEERERENEERTE
BEHEENESZEBAZA
Wom & %8 CAREAR st R Uk [l
ZHEER R ARERE B
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R BRI RE AR AEE
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

MEERER (&)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBELEE

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of reporting
period of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
and the Company can be required to pay:

$EIWM%”@E%EEﬁ
AgzHReE
%ZE%&L $$l2ﬁ

EHELERBESFT K
Mﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁ
NERHEERHARDESH
sk o

TRFNTAEBRARE 2
TREENHEHEERKZ
BRNETARER  HERER
WAFBRReRE (BEEA
R ARG E 2 M B IA I
BEB CRBERESHELER
FRITMNEFE) RAEHE
NARBWERNN 2 &FH
HR

The Group RE
Total More than
contractual Within 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
31 December 2009 amount cash flow on demand 5 years
BIHARR - FREH ERNES
ZBENETZAZT-H REE RERELT FREK BOREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Trade and other payables ERRFIRAMENT 3,429 3,429 3,429 -
Loans from a shareholder REER 7,658 9,564 - 9,564
11,087 12,993 3,429 9,564
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. KEBERE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEELRAMR (&)
The Group (Continued) AEE (&)
Total More than
contractual Within 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
31 December 2008 amount cash flow on demand 5 years
BE AR —E NI Nk
ZEE\FTZA=T—H FOE  AenERE RBEK BARTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAR TAR TAR
Trade and other payables ENRFARAMENT 8,679 8,679 8,679 -
Loans from a shareholder RRER 12,307 14,241 97 14,144
Loan from a former AIRRER
shareholder 1,596 1,750 450 1,300
Liabilities directly associated 25| AR {EHEEE
with assets classified ERABCEE
as held for sale 27,074 27,074 27,074 -
49,656 51,744 36,300 15,444
The Company b /NI
Total More than
contractual Within 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
31 December 2009 amount cash flow on demand 5 years
BITARAR -FREH SRWE
“EENETZA=1-H REE REREAE FRER BHREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET Thn Thn
Trade and other payables ENEARAMENT 4,256 4,256 4,256 -
Loans from a shareholder BREET 7,658 9,564 - 9,564
11,914 13,820 4,256 9,564
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c)

The Company (Continued)

32. K ERER (&)

(b) RBESER (&)

ZNNCING D)

Total More than

contractual Within 2 years but

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than

31 December 2008 amount cash flow on demand 5 years
BE AR —ERIE SRME

ZEEN\E+ZA=+-H REE  RenEgE RBEK BIRDE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL THL TAL THL

Trade and other payables ENRFARAMENT 9,335 9,335 9,335 -
Loans from a shareholder REER 12,307 14,241 97 14,144
21,642 23,576 9,432 14,144

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rate.

(c) == b

MR AEELmEAZH B4
ERAE AEEZKARE

EHREREBALO TENE

MEBLFE-

—TEAFFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 R 3% B =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk

As most of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
and the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Hong Kong dollars during the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group
only experienced immaterial exchange rate
fluctuations. The Group considers that as the
exchange rate risk of the Group is not significant,
the Group did not employ any financial instruments
for hedging purpose.

Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not

materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2009 and 2008.

Annual Report 2009

32. K ERER (&)

(d)

(e)

EWER

HRAEBALOEEEER
BEHABTIE MEEZ
ZENFR-_ZTZENF+ZA
=t HREFEARNEETRE
BUBTETEEBRS &
AEBEEETEANZEEXRK
B mNARERRANEE A
EZIHNERRIY AEKX BA
SEYERBEA R IAE
iz H -

A¥E

FESBMT A REE 8-
TEAFR-TE\F+ A
SH-BZAFEREEAE
Al -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R AR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTIIR)
33. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

3. cRMEENREHEBE 2D EM

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY =
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets RAEBR-ZZEZNEFRZZFZNF
and financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December TZTA=ZT—HERZIERMEER
2009 and 2008 may be categorised as follows: CRIBECFRAENSERBNUATIE
H :
2009 2008
—EBZhE —ZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET T T
Financial assets THMEE
Loans and receivables (including ERkERF (BRERE R
cash and bank balances) IRITEERR) 11,024 34,676
Financial liabilities TRAE
Financial liabilities measured REHEKAGTECERAE
at amortised cost 11,087 49,656

34. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2010.

34. IR RELR

HBEBMEENR_ZE-—FTF=ZA
Tt HAESEEL R ENE-

—TEAFFR
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Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
BEFBEEEBR AR

FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFFMERE

For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=t—-HLEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“RPAE —TENF -FELF -FEAE —FTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET TET FAET FAT

RESULTS E4
Turnover EE® 36,941 18,582 3,447 715 3,764
Profit/(loss) before taxation ~ BRE AT/ (EiE) 12,216 (9,564) (5,387) (10,966) (39,453)
Taxation B (346) (147) - - (6)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEF/(BE) 11,870 9,711) (5,387) (10,966) (39,459)
Attributable to: AT AT EM:
Equity holders of ARAAERFERA
the Company 11,870 (9,711) (5,376) (11,248) (38,372)
Minority interests PERFEER - - (11) 282 (1,087)
11,870 (9,711) (5,387) (10,966) (39,459)
Earnings/(loss) per share @R AT/ (E#E)
Basis (HK cents) 2R (L) 5.94 (4.86) (2.69) (5.62) (19.19)
Diluted (HK cents) BE (B NATER NATER NATER  NATER  NATEH
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES JEREE
Total assets BERE 11,405 34,939 24,345 23,621 51,647
Total liabilities BELERE (11,580) (49,803) (30,274) (22,788) (39,321)
(175) (14,864) (5,929) 833 12,326
Total equity attributable ADRERHEEAE
to equity shareholders of ~ fHiEZ@%
the Company (175) (16,340) (7,314) (472) 11,326
Minority interests DEREE S - 1,476 1,385 1,305 1,000
(175) (14,864) (5,929) 833 12,326
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